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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 

LAURENT HALLIER,

Plaintiff,
vs. 

PANORAMA TOWERS 
CONDOMINIUM UNIT OWNERS 
ASSOCIATION,                              

Defendant.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

 

  CASE NO.  A-744146 

  DEPT. XXII 
 
 
 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE SUSAN JOHNSON, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

JUNE 20, 2017 

 
RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE 

 
RE-NOTICE OF HEARING OF PLAINTIFF’S/COUNTER-DEFENDANTS LAURENT 
HALLIER’S, PANORAMA TOWERS I, LLC’S, PANORAMA TOWERS I, MEZZ, 
LLC’S, AND M.J. DEAN CONSTRUCTION, INC’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY 
JUDGMENT ON DEFENDANT/COUNTER-CLAIMANT PANORAMA TOWER 
CONDOMINIUM UNIT OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION’S COUNTER-CLAIM AND 
PLAINTIFFS/COUNTER DEFENDANTS LAURENT HALLIER’S. PANORAMA 
TOWERS I, LLC’S, PANORAMA TOWERS I MEZZ, LLC’S AND M.J. DEAN 

CONSTRUCTION, INC’S MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON 
THEIR THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF IN THEIR COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY 

RELIEF 
   
  APPEARANCES:     
 
  For the Plaintiff:      PETER C. BROWN, ESQ. 
        JEFFREY SAAB, ESQ.                 
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RECORDED BY:  NORMA RAMIREZ, COURT RECORDER 
 

TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2017 AT 10:41:26 A.M. 

 

         THE COURT:  Okay.  Hallier versus Panorama Towers Condominium Unit 

Owners Association versus [sic] A16-744146-D.  

         MR. BROWN:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Peter Brown on behalf of 

Laurent Hallier, Panorama Towers I, LLC, Panorama Towers I Mezz, LLC and 

M.J. Dean Construction, Inc. the moving parties. 

         MR. SALZANO:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Sergio Salzano on behalf of 

the HOA. 

         THE COURT:  It’s good to see you, sir.  It’s been a while. 

         MR. SALAZANO:  Thank you.  It has been a while. 

         THE COURT:  Yes.   

         MR. LYNCH:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Francis Lynch on behalf of the 

Association. 

   MR. HOPPER:  And Dee Hopper, Your Honor, on behalf of the 

Association. 

         THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, it’s been a while since I’ve seen Mr. Lynch 

too as well, but I see you, Mr. Hopper, every once in a while. 

         MR. HOPPER:  Yes, Your Honor. 

         THE COURT:  Okay.  By the way, counsel, just an FYI.  On the D side of 

the V, I noticed you had a bunch of people listed as counter defendants and 

they weren’t counter defendants.  And I’m talking about the subs, they should 
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be third party.  We might want to talk about changing that in your caption 

because it was a little confusing to me.  And of course – because – it was a 

little confusing because Mr. Brown is usually not on the P side of the V, okay?  

You guys are on the D side of the V which is also confusing to me and then 

whenever we had the counter defendants who aren’t counter defendants, the 

third party defendants. 

          MR. LYNCH:  Your Honor, it is so confusing.  We left it as counter 

defendants to [indecipherable] the clerk’s office since we had to serve a bunch 

of subcontractors.  But that happened and so we were gonna come in and talk 

to Peter and see if we could just change that to third parties. 

         THE COURT:  Okay.  We might want to consider doing that. 

         MR. LYNCH:  For sure.  We will. 

         THE COURT:  Okay.  But first I need to hear the motion for summary 

judgment. 

         MR. BROWN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Peter Brown on behalf of the 

moving parties who I will refer to collectively as the builders throughout the 

hearing on this motion.   

  Your Honor, everyone has a favorite time in their life.  I don’t know 

what yours is, for me it’s 1985 to 1992 and that is when I and my wife had 

just left graduate school in UC San Diego, we went to New York City, we were 

actors there, it was exciting.  I don’t know if you recall but back then New York 

was a grittier, let’s say more in my recollection, energetic city.  You really felt 

alive because you were – got up every morning and you said I lived another 

day.  And for me I always think back and said, oh, that’s just a great part of my 

life.  But, Your Honor, we have to move forward, you can’t live in the past, and 
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I know when I go back to New York City it’s not the same, people change.  The 

area changes, rules change, laws change.  Something as silly as I called up my 

wife and I said “New York will never be the same.”  And she said “why?”  

Because I’m standing outside of a California Pizza Kitchen in New York City.  

It’s not the same, I can’t go back.   

 Why do I say this, Your Honor?  Because the HOA wants to live in 

the past.  When you look at their opposition is it any wonder that they cite to 

cases that run from a 1984 case that predates Chapter 40 by eleven years and 

involves notice pleading not Chapter 40 notice.  They cite to the dissenting 

opinion in Olson in 2004, they cite to the 2007 First Light decision that’s based 

upon a reasonable standard that no longer applies with regard to notice because 

AB125 changed that from reasonable to specific.  They rely on cases that run 

from 2007 through 2011 none of which are CD cases but they rely upon those 

for the argument that they stand for the proposition that substantial compliance 

of the statute is all that’s really required not specific compliance as what is 

required by AB125. 

 The one case that they cite to Westpark which is again a 2007 case 

prior to AB125, they cite to that for the proposition that what my client’s 

motion is proposing is an absurd result because it would require them to do an 

unbelievable amount of costly investigation in order to comply with AB125.  

But Westpark is famous from my perspective as a defense attorney in 

construction defect is for what it says is that the statute if it is unambiguous 

then the Court is not to read beyond that.  And AB125, as we’ll talk about 

later, that statute is clear, it is not unambiguous  the changes that it made to 

Chapter 40 with regard to what are requirements for a notice.  The HOA wants 
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this Court to allow them to rely upon what was required under the old version 

of Chapter 40.  It would have allowed them to provide a notice such as that 

they provided in this particular case.  It would allow them to rely upon 

extrapolated evidence for the notice.  But, Your Honor, you realize that that part 

of Chapter 40 was taken out by AB125.  They want to rely upon reasonable as 

opposed to specific and exact which is what is required of their notice. 

 Now, we’ve couched our motion in two particular ways, one being 

a motion for summary judgment on the entire claim seeking the Court to have it 

dismissed and then also if the Court is not inclined to go that far, to specifically 

look at sections of what they’ve raised in their claims – in their counterclaim 

and to grant summary judgment with regard to our third cause of action for 

declaratory relief for failure to comply with Chapter 40.  And in contrast to how 

the moving papers set forth, I want to start actually on those three elements 

which are in the second section of our motion.  There are undisputed material 

facts.  The first undisputed material fact that that notice on February 24, 2015 

– or 16 references the tower windows with alleged corrosion to metal 

components, corroded mechanical room piping and sewer piping.  It is 

undisputed that my client did not receive statutorily required notice of any of 

the repairs being performed to Unit 300, it’s undisputed that my client did not 

receive any notice of the removal and replacement of elements of the 

mechanical piping claim that are alleged to be corroded.  It’s undisputed that 

my client did not receive notice of the removal and replacement of the alleged 

defective sewer components.  It is also undisputed that on two separate 

occasions my office on behalf of my clients sent letters to counsel for the HOA 

asking for clarification during the Chapter 40 process and what I will call the 
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who, the what, the where, the when, the how and the why pertaining to the 

mechanical plumbing claims, piping claims and the sewer and never received 

any response.  And in fact, it wasn’t until a year after that second letter was 

sent to the HOA.  In the opposition did we get even an attempt by the HOA.  

And it wasn’t in an affidavit by the HOA but it was just counsel’s 

representation as to the justification from their perspective as to why they did 

not give my clients notice of the removal and replacement of the sewer 

components.   

 They try to get around this by saying that the elements posed an 

unreasonable risk of injury and they specifically say that the alleged corrosion of 

the metal components of the exterior wall and floor assemblies, that those were 

in a reasonable risk of injury because they caused corrosion and although it’s 

not really in the notice, it’s not until yet Mr. Hindiyeh’s affidavit after the fact 

where he says:  “Oh well, that compromises the structural integrity.”  Although 

there is no structural engineers report for that, there’s no notice of actual 

structural integrity compromising.  They also say that there’s unreasonable risk 

of injury with regard to the sewer line, and what they say in their opposition is 

that it’s due to alleged disbursement of unsanitary matter.   

  Well, let’s look at those claims with regards to the three areas 

where we’re asking this Court for summary judgment with regards to my 

client’s third claim for relief, the first being unit 300.  Unit 300 is where we 

have the alleged genesis of the claims pertaining to the windows and to the fire 

blocking.  What we find out in the oppositions – affidavit from Mr. Hindiyeh 

that those issues were known as far back as August of 2013 and that work in 

that particular unit took place from August of 2013 through Jan – or July of 
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2016.  And yet despite all of that, my client does not get a notice of these so 

called issues which represent allegedly an unreasonable risk of injury until 

February of 2016.  Now, even if this Court were to accept the premise that that 

was an unreasonable risk of injury there is NRS 40.670 which again would have 

required notice to my client when you’re talking about issues that create an 

eminent threat to health or safety.  So, whether you’re under 40.655 or you’re 

under NRS 40.670 it is undisputed that my client had to receive notice.  And it 

is also undisputed that my client did not receive any notice prior to the repairs 

being performed.   

  With regard to the sewer line claims frankly we still have no 

information whatsoever as to where this occurred, why it occurred, when it 

occurred, who did the repairs, when they did the repairs, the cost of the 

repairs.  No information as to the alleged damage to other components of the 

property arising from this sewer line which is asserted in the notice but there’s 

information other than that.  And again, Your Honor, we asked twice for them 

to clarify that during the Chapter 40 process and it wasn’t until one year after 

April 29, 2016 the date we sent the second request.  It wasn’t until April 29th 

of 2016 a year later the HOA’s counsel provides the following which is found 

on page 12 of their opposition.  Notice and inspections of a defect simply 

weren’t possible at the time, it was only after the Association was made aware 

that damages resulting from the defect were recoverable because the sewer 

problems were not released in the prior litigation that the decision was made to 

pursue the issue.     

  Now again, Your Honor, this is just a statement by counsel, there is 

no affidavit to that effect in support of the opposition.  Now, let’s take that 
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statement and consider it.  This HOA board is asking you to take that as the 

basis for denial of my client’s motion for summary judgment as to the claims 

regarding the sewer line.  This is a board which has been through years of pre-

litigation Chapter 40 process and years of litigation in the first Panorama 

Towers litigation that was in front of this Court.  This same board sat through 

hours, days of expert presentations both by their own experts and by my 

experts during that original litigation which involved tens and millions of dollars 

of alleged claims for construction defects.  This same board demanded and 

obtained as part of the settlement agreement in the first case a release which 

excluded from the release defects that were not raised during the first case.  

They demanded that and it’s in the settlement agreement and attached to that 

settlement agreement, Your Honor, is a list of every single defect that was 

raised during the case.  So, there’s no question as to what was raised during 

the earlier case and yet they’re asking you to believe that this sophisticated 

board that has been through years of litigation and at the time of the first 

litigation were represented by what is the premiere construction defect law firm 

in Nevada with regard to high rise litigation.  This is no denigration whatsoever 

with regard to my opponents.  An additional premiere law firm in construction 

defect litigation especially with regard to product liability claims.  But the firm of 

Feinberg, Grant is known in this town and is known throughout California as 

specializing in high rise CD litigation. They represented this board when that 

settlement agreement was executed and yet this board is asking this Court to 

believe the statement of counsel that we just didn’t know, we didn’t realize and 

so we didn’t figure out that we could give notice and so we didn’t give notice 

until after the repair was done.   
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MR. SALZANO:  Your Honor, I’m sorry.  Those specific issues are not 

before the Court on this motion. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, I’ll listen to everybody, okay?  And I’m gonna 

be listening to you too, okay? 

         MR. SALZANO:  I just don’t want us to steer into other areas regarding 

the – for instance the release which – 

         THE COURT:  I understand. 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- is not – it’s not a matter that he even brings – raises 

in his motion. 

         THE COURT:  I understand. 

         MR. BROWN:  Thank you. Your Honor.  The – if this Court was faced 

with an argument from an HOA on a construction defect case that says to you, 

well, we didn’t know that we had to give notice prior to giving – filing a lawsuit 

or we didn’t know that we had to give the builders an opportunity to repair, or, 

Your Honor, we didn’t know what a statute of repose was.  Ignorance of the 

law is not a defense.   

  This HOA board with regard to the sewer had all the information 

that they needed in order to know that they should have provided notice to my 

client. And the only thing that you have in front of you is a statement on page 

12 from counsel not from the HOA board asking you in essence to give them a 

pass, to say it’s okay, it’s okay Panorama Tower, sophisticated, experienced, 

experienced and sophisticated in construction defect litigation.  It’s okay that 

you didn’t give the builders notice.   

  With regard to the mechanical room piping claim, the HOA doesn’t 

make a claim that there’s an unreasonable risk of injury.  That’s nowhere in the 
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Chapter 40 notice, it’s nowhere in the expert reports that’s attached from 

2011.  And they can’t say that, Your Honor, because when you look at that 

particular report they couldn’t possibly make that claim because Exhibit B to 

their report – and that’s found as exhibit – it’s Exhibit B to builder’s Exhibit 1.  

It identifies three different categories that back in 2011 this particular 

inspecting company made recommendations to replace certain components 

now, replace within one to five years or replace long term.  So, Your Honor, if 

this was done back in 2011 there were years prior to the replacement of these 

components for them to give my client notice and to give my client an 

opportunity to inspect and make a decision as to whether or not it wanted to 

repair if indeed my client felt that those were valid claims not barred by the 

terms of the settlement agreement or by statute or by other arguments.   

  NRS 40.645 requires the claimant to give my client notice, NRS 

40.670 requires notice, NRS 40.647 requires the claimant to allow my client to 

do an inspection of the alleged issues and NRS 40.647(2) includes an inviolate 

right of my clients to make a determination after they get a proper notice and 

after they do their inspection to make a decision as to whether or not they want 

to repair.  In all of the instances for these three categories everything having to 

do with unit 300, everything having to do with any mechanical room 

component that has already been removed and replaced and the entire sewer 

claim, all of those completely disregarded those statutes.  The only remedy, 

Your Honor, to my client if for you to grant summary judgment on those 

particular issues because there is no justification that’s been provided to you to 

support an argument as to why they can completely disregard the statutory 

requirements.  They didn’t provide my client notice.  And in fact what is being 
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said to this Court today is that that’s all right, Mr. Brown’s experts can look at 

photographs, Mr. Brown’s experts can talk to our experts, Mr. Brown, he can 

take depositions of the people who did the repairs. But what doesn’t change, 

Your Honor, is that the statute says my client has an absolute right to make the 

determination as to whether or not it is going to do the repair and that can 

never be given back to my client.  They took that away, Your Honor.  And the 

only remedy is for this Court to grant summary judgment as to those three 

categories; all of the defects that are alleged to exist in unit number 300, any 

mechanical piping component that has already been removed and replaced.  

And again, Your Honor, we’ve asked for them to identify where are they.  Even 

today there isn’t a single word in the opposition or in the affidavit from Mr. 

Kent, their mechanical expert, as to where these components are; whether they 

were saved, whether any documentation was taken of them.   

  So, even if this Court were to say, “Well, Mr. Brown, you can 

expect – inspect them.”  There’s been no evidence provided to me even after a 

year of asking and no evidence provided to this Court that those components 

exist.  The same thing for the sewer repairs, Your Honor, we’ve asked where 

are they?  Did you save the components?  The only remedy, Your Honor, with 

regard to those three elements of Plaintiff’s case is to dismiss them – is to 

grant our motion for summary judgment.  Now, overall we were also seeking 

summary judgment as to their notice in its entirety because we believe that it is 

such an egregious disregard for what AB125 requires.  That there is no remedy 

but for the Court to send them back to the drawing board and to attempt – to 

attempt to give a proper notice.  That’s the only remedy, Your Honor. 

  What’s surprising is that at the time the notice was given there 
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were two separate law firms representing the HOA.  There was the one law 

firm out of California and then also there was local counsel Leach, Johnson, 

Song and Gruchow.  I was familiar with Mr. Leach because he used to work for 

Feinberg, Grant.  And they gave notice, Your Honor, and they knew what 

AB125 required.  How do we know they knew that?  Well, one, they knew they 

had to try to get it in on that last day of the one year savings clause, they knew 

that there was something out there that required them to get something in 

under that deadline, they knew that AB125 required them to get an affidavit 

from a representative of the board which they did but they didn’t comply with 

the very specific language of AB125.  The HOA spends a lot of time talking 

about the First Light case and makes two arguments.  One, that somehow my 

clients have waived the right to raise an objection to the notice because it 

wasn’t done back during the Chapter 40 process and that we didn’t file 

something prior to filing our declaratory relief action.  Well, Your Honor, 

Plaintiffs in their opposition opened the door to what I believe is improper 

reference to what occurred during the mediation.  If you recall that in the 

opposition they said “Well, they didn’t attend the mediation in good faith.”  

They opened that door, Your Honor.  And I’m gonna tell you that in my clients 

Chapter 40 response there is a section that specifically talks about what is 

wrong with the notice.  In my motion I said it’s protected from disclosure so all 

I’m gonna tell you is that I’m gonna represent to this Court that not according 

to what plaintiff’s said but what I know what I did – 

THE COURT:  You keep calling them Plaintiffs. 

MR. BROWN:  I know I did that.  What the HOA – 

THE COURT:  You’re – 
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MR. BROWN:  -- did.

THE COURT:  -- on the P side of the V – 

         MR. BROWN:  I know. 

         THE COURT:  -- Mr. Brown.   

         MR. BROWN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  The HOA contends that nothing 

was done during the Chapter 40 process and that is patently untrue, Your 

Honor.  It was raised as part of the response to the Chapter 40 notice and it 

was raised during the mediation.  And, Your Honor, the two letters that I 

specifically asked for information from them with regard to what I believe were 

problems with their Chapter 40 notice and we did what was appropriate.  In our 

declaratory relief action that’s our third cause of action failure to comply with 

Chapter 40, and it specifically says in our declaratory relief complaint that they 

failed to comply with what AB125 required them to do with regard to specific 

identifications of defects, damages and injuries.  

  The undisputed material facts with regard to this portion of the 

motion is that the notice does not give a location of each alleged defect damage 

and/or injury in each unit.  It does not.  The notice also references specifically 

corrosion damage to nail framing components, it also specifically states that fire 

blockings not installed as required in two different areas.  And what we now 

know but which we didn’t know when we received the notice is that prior to 

the notice being issued, Omar Hindiyeh, one of the experts for the HOA, in 

December and January prior to the issuance of the notice went out and his 

company inspected fifteen units.  Now, whether inspecting fifteen units is 

sufficient in a project the size of this one with two towers of hundreds upon 

hundreds of units is another issue, Your Honor, but even then Mr. Hindiyeh in 
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an affidavit said that of the fifteen units inspected he’s then trying to 

extrapolate a seventy-six percent occurrence rate of corrosion, a seventy-six 

percent occurrence rate of the lack of fire blocking in the ledge or shelf area and 

then he doesn’t give any percentage whatsoever and just says, well, the fire 

blocking materials in the steel stud framing cavities really wasn’t done as well 

as it should have been done.  Well, number one, Your Honor, that – even if it 

was included in the AB125 notice AB125 specifically took out from the notice 

portion of the statute.  And this is Exhibit 4 to the builder’s motion.  In talking 

about NRS 40.645 on page 12, Your Honor, you’ll see that along with changing 

what type of detail was to be provided there is sections of the old Chapter 40 

that were specifically removed.  And I’m referring to subsection four and 

subsection three which says that a notice based upon a valid and reliable 

representative sample maybe used.  That is taken out of the statute.  It no 

longer exists, Your Honor.  You cannot rely upon extrapolation or a 

representative sample in your notice under AB125.   

 Going back to the Westpark case where the HOA says that 

Westpark stands for the premise that you cannot have an absurd result.  Your 

Honor, you’ll recall Westpark.  What was absurd about that decision was 

absurd – the Supreme Court determined that what was absurd is that a unit 

which had been occupied for seven years as an apartment could not and should 

not be classified as new under the definition of residence under Chapter 40 and 

that’s why that District Court decision was overturned by the Supreme Court.  

But Westpark specifically says that where the language of the statute is 

unambiguous the Courts are not permitted to look beyond the statute itself 

when determining its meaning.  And so when you look at the statute, Your 
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Honor – and this again is back to Exhibit 4, what does that statute require?  In 

40.6 – NRS 40.645 subsection 2, subsection B – this is on page 12 of the 

exhibit that I provided to you -- 

         THE COURT:  I’m there. 

MR. BROWN:  -- took out what was the reasonable detail language which 

was the basis for the First Light I decision and put in that the notice must 

identify in specific detail each defect, damage and injury to each residence or 

appurtenance that is the subject of the claim including without limitation the 

exact location of each such defect, damage and injury.  Now, there are a couple 

of things that the HOA brings up in their opposition.  Number one, they accuse 

the builders of inserting unit in the definition but when you look at the definition 

of residence under NRS 40.630 residence means any dwelling in which title to 

the individual units is transferred to the owners.  The statute itself identifies 

residences including a unit, Your Honor.  And this statute says that you must 

have identified in specific detail each defect, damage and injury to each 

residence or appurtenance that is the subject of the claim including without 

limitation the exact location of each such defect, damage or injury.   

In the Chapter 40 notice we first have to look at what is alleged in 

the Chapter 40 notice.  Now, they allege that all of the windows have the same 

design deficiency.  Now, Your Honor, I know that’s not true.  Why do I know 

that?  Because about a month ago the HOA tried to serve a new Chapter 40 

notice which they withdrew for different windows that don’t have this 

particular issue.  They tried to give a Chapter 40 notice for an entirely new 

window issue but that was so far beyond the one year savings period of AB125 

they withdrew that.  But you’ve got claims that the windows have alleged to 
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water intrusion.  And in the Chapter 40 notice it specifically says:  “As a 

consequence of this deficiency water that should have drained to the exterior of 

the building has been entering the metal framing components of the exterior 

wall and floor assemblies including the curb walls that support the windows and 

is causing corrosion damage to the metal parts and components within these 

assemblies.”  So, their notice – and this is – 

         THE COURT:  But you’re – 

         MR. BROWN:  -- Exhibit 1. 

         THE COURT:  Exhibit 1, page 1? 

         MR. BROWN:  Page 2.   

         THE COURT:  Page 2. 

         MR. BROWN:  At the top of page 2 you’ll see, Your Honor, in the first 

paragraph in the fourth line the notice specifically identifies corrosion damage.  

We know that Mr. Hindiyeh, in his post-notice affidavit, in the opposition says 

that “oh well, I went out and I inspected fifteen units amongst these hundreds 

and hundreds of units and of those units we believe that corrosion exists in 

seventy-six percent of them.”  Now, we already know that the statute doesn’t 

allow them to do that but what the statute does require is that identify in 

specific detail each defect damage and injury to each residence including 

without limitation the exact location.  So, the statute required the HOA once it 

decided it was going to make a claim for corrosion damage to identify in 

specific detail where that corrosion damage is in each and every unit without 

limitation the exact location and they did not do that, Your Honor.   

  The notice is not in compliance with the specific requirements of 

AB125.  The HOA contends that we must challenge with specificity what is 
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wrong with the notice and that’s what we’ve done but they don’t want to live 

up to what the statute requires.  So, for unit 300 they cannot rely as part of 

their notice on post-notice affidavits from Mr. Hindiyeh to convince this Court 

that a seventy-six percent rate based upon fifteen units or an unknown 

percentage because it gives none as to one of the fire blocking issues is 

somehow specific enough to satisfy that portion of the statute.  So, that aspect 

of the notice is completely non-compliant with the statute and the Court should 

send them back to start again. 

  The residential fire blocking.  We talked about that that they can’t 

rely upon that.  Again, that’s what they found – allegedly found in unit 300 and 

allegedly in those fifteen units.  We already know that the sewer piping claim 

they’ve given absolutely no information on that.  There’s no specifics despite 

our requesting that and so they should be sent back.  If the Court does not 

summarily rule in my client’s favor with regard to the sewer claim then they got 

to give information but that should be out of the case period.  The same thing 

with regard to the mechanical room piping as to any aspect of that claim that 

has already repaired; it should be out of the case.  With regard to the rest of it, 

what you don’t have – they say, oh, there’s plenty of information, there’s 

photographs and there’s a chart, but when you look at the actual report that’s 

provided by their expert, Mr. – by – not their expert, by the original, he talks 

about generalities.  Look, there’s some yellow brass issues out there and, you 

know, when they start to leak you should maybe replace them.  That’s not 

specific, Your Honor, that’s not giving my client the specificity that is required 

by the statute.  They also make the claim – I guess Mr. Hindiyeh makes this 

claim although it’s not in the notice that somehow the corrosion has affected 
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the structural integrity of the mechanical -- of the metal stud walls and other 

aspects of the – of the building.  That’s not in the Chapter 40 notice, Your 

Honor, and, you know, I’d say they’re time barred from bringing that particular 

claim but in any event it’s not part of the notice.   

  Your Honor, this Court should not reward the HOA for a claim – and 

let’s not beat around the bush.  They’re seeking tens of millions of dollars with 

regard to the window claims in this case and the fire blocking claims in this 

case and yet they don’t believe that they’re required to follow the statute.  

They bring to you affidavits from their experts and say this is why it’s absurd 

because look what we would have to spend in order to comply with the statute.  

My response is three-fold.  Number one, if the Plaintiff’s bar did not like that 

aspect of the statute they could have attempted to have it changed this time 

around from the legislature.  In fact, there were attempts to get the statute 

changed to some extent but they never were put up to a vote and so we have 

AB125 at least for the next two years. 

  They say that, Your Honor, it would be unfair to put that onus upon 

them to do the inspection that they believe is required in order to comply with 

the statute, but isn’t that what they’re saying my clients would have to do?  

That they can rely upon an extrapolated number and say to my client that, oh, 

there’s corrosion in seventy-six percent of the units.  There’s a failure of – a 

lack of fire blocking in seventy-six percent of the units, there’s an unknown 

percentage of fire blocking issues here.  If you want to fight it out you do this 

inspection, you spend that money and figure out whether or not you want to 

pay for it or repair.  So, they want this Court to give them sympathy but then 

they want my client to incur these costs.  But, Your Honor, when I was reading 
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those costs I thought to myself what do we hear all the time today in the 

political field?  Things want to be done and what you hear are these the sky is 

falling premises as -- if this is done this is what’s gonna happen or if this is not 

done this is what’s gonna happen.  Two examples.  What did we hear back in 

2009 when the Affordable Care Act was being put up for consideration?  2009, 

everyone talked about something that never came to pass.  And in fact, 

PolitiFact said it was the biggest lie of 2009, death panels.  What are we 

hearing today?  We’re hearing today that if the new medical care act goes 

through – the last statement I heard is that twenty-three million people would 

lose their coverage.  We don’t know until one act goes through to the other to 

see whether or not something actually occurs, Your Honor.  But what we do 

know is that that is what happens and that’s what’s happening here as well.  

I’m not trying to equate this claim with the Affordable Care Act or the new 

potential care act, Your Honor, except to – 

         THE COURT:  Thank God. 

 MR. BROWN:  -- say this.  Except to say this, that that is what is being 

done with regard to trying to get this Court to disregard what the statute 

requires, to disregard that the statute is clear on its face that it must come – 

any new claim with a notice that’s specifically identifies the defect, the 

damage, the injury without limitation in exact locations in every residence.  

Residence includes the definition of a unit.  That wasn’t done, Your Honor.  

This Court has no choice but to grant our motion and to send them back and to 

see if they can do this right the next time around, Your Honor.  The statute 

gives you the right to do that, to dismiss it without prejudice or to stay the 

case.  Now, if you choose to stay the case, Your Honor, respectfully I don’t 
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think that you should stay – I think you stay their counterclaim – the HOA’s 

counterclaim, I don’t believe you have to stay my client’s declaratory relief 

action if the Court does choose to take that option.  Do you have any 

questions, Your Honor? 

         THE COURT:  No.   

         MR. BROWN:  Thank you.  

         MR. SALZANO:  Good morning, Your Honor.  I’m gonna give you one 

reason why you cannot grant their motion, one reason why you shouldn’t grant 

their motion and one reason why it would be unwise to grant their motion. 

  Let me start out with the cannot.  Usually that’s sufficient to defeat 

a motion for summary judgment but unfortunately we’re gonna have to cover all 

three because of the nature of the allegations made by the builder in this case.  

First of all, under NRS 40.6427(2)(B) the statute that I’m certain you’re familiar 

with.  I’ll go ahead and read it into the record, Your Honor.  Starting at 

subsection two:  “If a claimant commences an action without complying with 

subsection or NRS 40.645 the Court shall” -- under subsection B, “if dismissal 

of the action would prevent the claimant from filing another action because the 

action would be procedurally barred by the statute of limitations or statute of 

repose the Court shall stay the proceedings pending compliance with those 

provisions by the claimant.”  This Court does not have discretion.  I normally 

wouldn’t use such strong language with the Court.  I know the Court has 

discretion – wide discretion on many things and courts usually exercise that 

when they see fit, but here the statute says “shall stay the litigation pending 

resolution of the Chapter 40 issues.” 

         THE COURT:  The one thing that Mr. Brown did say is that – and maybe 
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you can address this. That if I were to apply the statute that it would be 

applied here, a counterclaim or a third party action – or both but not to his – 

not to the primary action which is seeking declaratory relief. 

         MR. SALZANO:  Let’s discuss that for a bit.  The action that was brought 

by the builder was a declaratory relief on a number of different issues; some 

involving indemnification, interpretation of the settlement agreement as a 

contract, some involving the insufficiency of the Chapter 40 which is before the 

Court today.  And that’s why I didn’t understand why Mr. Brown kept 

discussing the settlement agreement or what my clients should have known 

four years ago because that’s not really before the Court, meaning that 

settlement agreement – at some point we’ll get an opportunity to discuss the 

ins and outs of it I think likely because Mr. Brown referred to specifics within 

that settlement agreement that any confidentiality that his client hoped to have 

in it is likely gone because he raised an issue in open court with regards to 

certain aspects of it.  I’m gonna have to dive into it to defend my client with 

respect to that settlement agreement.  But ultimately you’ve seen it, it’s before 

you in camera and you know that the specific claims that are raised by us are 

not covered within it, okay?  That much is simple.  But there are a number of 

different issues that relates in that deck relief action and it’s not simply a deck 

relief action on the sufficiency of Chapter 40.  It’s a deck relief action for a 

number of different issues and the kicker is it seeks affirmative damages, it’s 

asking for damages against my client.  So, in reality it’s not a deck relief, it’s a 

lawsuit.  And that gets to my second point.  And I’ll circle back to this issue of 

what should and should not be stayed.   

  Under NRS 645 subsection 4(A) -- and again I’m sure you’ve read 
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this many times:  “Notice is not required pursuant to this – this section before 

commencing an action if (a) the contractor, subcontractor, supplier or design 

professional has filed an action against the claimant.”  Now, I’ve heard parties 

in here saying “well, but there’s an unwritten exception for declaratory relief 

when all I’m trying to do is the First Light type of thing.  I’m trying to determine 

whether or not the 40 is sufficient.”  They did way more than that, Your Honor, 

they’re asking for damages against us.  That’s a regular old garden variety 

lawsuit against us. They’re trying to enforce a contract and get damages from 

us.  If that’s the case, Your Honor, under subsection 4(a) – 

MR. BROWN:  Your Honor – 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- 40 goes away, it – 

         MR. BROWN:  -- I’m going to object – 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- evaporates. 

         MR. BROWN:  -- to his argument, it’s nowhere in his moving papers. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, I’m gonna listen to what Mr. – I listened to 

you, counsel, and I appreciate – 

         MR. BROWN:  Thank you. 

         THE COURT:  -- if we had a jury here I’d be a little bit more concerned, 

but – 

         MR. BROWN:  I appreciate it.  Thank you. 

         THE COURT:  Wait a minute; you said you were looking at 40.6454? 

         MR. SALZANO:  4(a). 

         THE COURT:  Now – maybe – is that in the new one?  Because the old 

one says 4(a) talks about – except – well, 4 says:  “Except as otherwise 

provided in subsection 5 one notice may be sent.”  Or is there – am I missing 
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something?

MR. SALZANO:  We just printed this out.  This should be the new 

version.  It has all the AB –

THE COURT:  Well – 

MR. SALZANO:  -- 125 – 

         THE COURT:  -- if it’s in the new version I’ll look.  Oh, I’m with you.  

Okay, thank you.  But you had already filed – 

         MR. SALZANO:  We did.   

         THE COURT:  Well, what I mean is you already provided them a 40.645 

notice before they filed the lawsuit. 

         MR. SALZANO:  In the words of the builder the Chapter 40 process was 

complete.  That was their excuse for filing.  And having filed the Chapter 40 

requirements rights and responsibilities evaporate, they’re gone.  This statute 

says that once they sue us the requirements of the Chapter 40 notice go away. 

         THE COURT:  Well, yeah, but you – no, I took what he – what Mr. 

Brown said is we instituted the deck action two days after the mediation took 

place.  So, you guys were far beyond the notice – 

         MR. SALZANO:  Yes. 

         THE COURT:  -- right?   

         MR. SALZANO:  Yes. 

         THE COURT:  So, as far as the 40.645 notice it had already been done, I 

mean, you – 

         MR. SALZANO:  And there’s no need to go back to it, correct?  

         THE COURT:  Well, as far as whether or not the notice is sufficient? 

         MR. SALZANO:  Well, there’s no need to go back to it anyway.  They 
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filed an action against us and the statute says:  “Notice is not required if the 

contractor has sued us.”  So, why would we go back and get a second attempt 

to a notice when we’ve already been sued and the notice is not required? 

         THE COURT:  Well, the deck – the purpose of the deck action that – 

from what I understand – and forgive me, I have not gone through and read the 

entire thing which I probably will do after this – after this hearing today.  I’m 

hoping to decide this issue without taking it under advisement.  Which by the 

way I am getting on time, I’ve only got three dealing with one case now but – 

that I’ve gotta write.  But the fact is the deck action from what I understand is 

challenging the sufficiency of the notice, I mean, at least in part. 

          MR. SALZANO:  In one cause of action.  In the first cause of action it 

asks for the application of AB125 to the – to the Chapter – 

         THE COURT:  Right. 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- 40 notice.  And I have – 

         THE COURT:  Right. 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- seen instances in cases and judges apply when you 

file a deck relief action that’s not really an action against the HOA.  The type of 

action they’re talking about is when you’re suing them for damages for some 

reason outside the Chapter 40 notice.   

         THE COURT:  Yeah, like for – 

         MR. SALZANO:  The problem is – 

         THE COURT:  -- example if your client had – if you were representing the 

homeowner and didn’t pay the cost of the repair or something like that.  That’s 

kind of the way I take it.  But a complaint for declaratory relief to challenge the 

sufficiency of the notice I see as a different animal. 
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MR. SALZANO:  But they sue us for spoliation, they sue us for breach of 

contract, they sue us for an application of a duty to defend and an application 

of a duty to identify in four separate causes of action that are completely 

unrelated to the Chapter 40 notice itself.  They are based upon a contract that 

was executed between the HOA and the builder relative to the previous 

settlement and they asked for damages.  And that has nothing to do with the 

declaratory relief on the sufficiency of the Chapter 40 notice.  Though I 

disagree, Your Honor, I don’t think that you should be able to challenge the 

sufficiency of a Chapter 40 through a deck relief action.  I understand the 

reasoning behind why courts have ruled that that does not trigger the four – the 

subsection 4 that essentially takes you out of the Chapter 40 context. 

         THE COURT:  Probably because – well, of course that’s – okay, they just 

changed the numbering from six to four.   

         MR. SALZANO:  Yes. 

         THE COURT:  Okay.  Never mind.  I was gonna say, well, we haven’t 

been subjected to number four yet – 

         MR. SALZANO:  You know – 

         THE COURT:  -- but we have on six so – 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- you gave me a little bit of a fright, Your Honor, 

because as I go through these Chapter 40’s I have older copies of it sitting 

around my office and sometimes I pull out that older copy and I get into to it 

and I’m like wait a second, this is the old version.  There are so many versions 

of Chapter 40 we have that we should think [indecipherable] we have the right 

one. 

  Setting aside those two issues.  Number one; that – the statute 
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says shall – shall stay because of the statute of limitations.  The statute also 

gives you the right to essentially turn off Chapter 40 and put Chapter 40 in the 

past.  As my – as counsel so eloquently stated “we don’t want to live in the 

past anymore.”  Let’s put it behind us and go into discovery.  I would like to 

discuss however some of the merits of the action – of this discussion about 

whether or not our Chapter 40 notice satisfied the AB125 requirements.  And 

clearly there’s a disagreement between the HOA and the builder as to what the 

effect of the requirements of AB125 are.  I would like to start out by stating 

that I just flat disagree with any notion that Chapter 40 forbids extrapolation.  I 

understand that the notice requirements that allowed for extrapolation to be 

done in the notice have been removed and I know that the language under 

645(a) – or (b) was changed and it kind of looks that way.  But the reason why 

I have a problem with that blanket statement that you can never use 

extrapolation in a Chapter 40 notice is because if they wanted it to say that 

they could have said it in one sentence.  Extrapolation or representative 

sampling will not be used to satisfy your requirements under Chapter 40, NRS 

40.6 [indecipherable] et seq.  They could have said that and they didn’t.  And I 

think it’s important to know why they wouldn’t have said something like that 

because there are instances where without it Chapter 40 becomes kind of a 

dead letter.   

  In the case of my clients we have 600 units, 600 condominium 

units in a – in a high rise and the builders expect us to blue tape every single 

defect.  Let me explain what blue taping is.  It’s a word that I came up with to 

describe something I’ve been asked to do a few times over the last twenty 

some odd years.  I was born and raised here in Vegas; I still have friends, family 
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all over the town.  And on occasion when one of my friends or family buys a 

new house they call me, they say Serg you do construction defect, why don’t 

you come over and look at my house in a walk through because I don’t want to 

sign off on anything with the builder until I’ve had you look at it.  As if I have 

some secret knowledge about how a house should look when it’s built.  I don’t 

know but they invite me over, usually they give me a pastry and so I go.  And 

invariably when you arrive you get – you get this role of blue masking tape, you 

know, the type that the painters use when they mask stuff off and it sticks to 

stuff but it doesn’t leave any of the residue behind so they love to use it when 

you’re doing these walk throughs.  And they – they tell you rip a little piece off 

and stick it wherever you see a problem.  Oh, you know, the painter didn’t get 

all the way up into the corner, blue tape; crack in the tub, blue tape; a chip off 

of the sink, blue tape; no hot water, blue tape; crack in the tile, blue tape.  

Well, sometimes you get lucky.  Sometimes these houses are very well built 

and there’s very few problems and very few pieces of blue tape, but I’ve had 

those experiences,  Your Honor, where sometimes you walk in and the house is 

full of blue tape, it’s all over the place.  And sometimes it’s not just little things 

like a little scratch here or a little bump there or a mark there, sometimes it’s – 

we got tile here and we paid for wood flooring.  We paid for wood flooring why 

is there tile here?  Sometimes there’s serious issues.   

  Well, the reason why I bring up blue taping – and I apologize for 

you indulging me on this, but the builder’s interpretation of Chapter 40 is that 

homeowners have to blue tape each and every defect in each and every home.  

If you got a thousand homes you gotta walk a thousand homes and blue tape 

every single defect in that house and homes.  I don’t think that’s right, I think 
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that’s incorrect.  If you look at NRS 645(2)(b) it says:  “Identify in specific 

detail each defect, damage and injury to each residence or appurtenance as the 

subject of this – of the claim including without limitation the exact location of 

each such defect, damage and injury.”  It doesn’t say you have to identify each 

defect in each home with the exact location in each home or in each unit.  And 

this is where Mr. – where counsel for the builders misunderstood our argument.  

There’s no – we don’t care about units or residences; we understand that 

they’re interchangeable within the statute.  We believe that they want to add in 

each unit to the end of subsection B to require us to blue tape every single 

defect in every single home.  I don’t think that’s a correct interpretation, Your 

Honor.  I think that if you blue tape a particular defect that’s gonna apply to the 

next thousand homes in the exact same location you have satisfied your burden 

under this statute.  Now, you could call it representative sampling, you can call 

it extrapolation, you can call it whatever you want to, it satisfies the statute 

because you have identified the exact location where it’s gonna occur in every 

single home.  And the reason why I go through this discussion is because that’s 

what we did in our Chapter 40 notice.   

  For instance with the windows, we alleged that there’s a missing 

damaged sill plate in the window assembly.  And I think that much is clear from 

that little paragraph that’s included in the Chapter 40 notice.  Well, once you 

understand what a missing sill plate is you know exactly where that sill plate is 

missing from in each and every unit.  It’s not gonna change.  In the first unit it’s 

found in the window, in the second unit it’s found in the exact same place at 

the bottom of every metal framing around each of the windows.  You’re not 

gonna go to a unit and say, hey, there’s a missing sill plate from the – from the 
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washing machine room or let’s go look under the – under the bathroom cabinet 

to see if there’s a missing sill plate.  No.  It’s in the exact same place in every 

unit.  Meaning once you define the defect and define it with enough certainty 

you locate – you locate it, you localize it in every single unit.  And I believe that 

if you’ll read the actual words of 645(2)(b) that’s sufficient for AB125 because 

we’ve given the exact location.  In other words, Peter’s experts or his client can 

walk in with that short description and go right to where that defect is in any 

one of the units. 

         THE COURT:  Can I ask you this?  Going down to subsection D of NRS 

40.645 it also requires:  “That there be a signed statement by each named 

owner of a residence or appurtenance in the notice that each such owner 

verifies that each such defect, damage and injury is specified in the notice 

exists in the residence or appurtenance owned by him.”  And so on.   

         MR. SALZANO:  Then the next sentence too. 

         THE COURT:  Yes.  Right.  “And if the notice is sent on behalf of the 

homeowners association the statement required must be signed under penalty 

of perjury by a board -- member of the executive board or officer of the 

association.” 

         MR. SALZANO:  And it was.   

         THE COURT:  Okay. 

         MR. SALZANO:  The HOA – the HOA board signed – 

         THE COURT:  So, I take it that this sill plate that you’ve been talking 

about is an HOA issue it is not a unit issue? 

         MR. SALZANO:  Whether it’s in the common areas?  Yes, we believe it’s 

in the common areas. 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.

MR. SALZANO:  And it’s in the same – it’s the same missing issue or 

damages issue in the exact same place in every single one of the units.  And 

here’s what I find particularly troubling about the builder’s description of the 

problem.  They have the burden still under First Light, it’s still good law as far 

as I understand.  They have the burden to explain with specificity what the 

problems are with our Chapter 40 notice.  Here’s what they stated relative to 

this window issue.  Let me read this into the record.  I’m on page 14, lines 22 

to 24.  “The purpose of requiring a claimant to provide specific details regarding 

an alleged defect is to allow a contractor to inspect the alleged defect.”  It’s 

right there on page 14, lines 22 to 24.  They’re asserting that because we 

didn’t give an exact enough description of the defect or location of the defect 

they can’t do an inspection.  Here’s the issue, Your Honor.  They can’t inspect 

it anyway; it’s inside the window railing.  You’d have to pull that thing apart to 

see what’s missing.  It’s the same problem with the fire blocking.  They can’t 

inspect that fire blocking because it’s behind the drywall, you gotta pull the 

drywall off to get back there to see where it’s missing.  Omar found it not 

because he was doing some pre-litigation work up because we’re gonna send a 

Chapter 40 notice as the builder has alleged, Omar found it because there were 

leaking in a unit and the HOA that was sitting at that time said, “hey, Omar, we 

know you from the previous litigation, would you come here and take a look at 

this?”  Omar said, “Sure.  Here’s my – here’s what I – it’s gonna cost.”  And 

he came out and looked at it and found the problems and he reported that to 

the HOA board.  And then other units leaked and so they said, “Omar, go take 

a look at those too.”  And it’s the accumulation of these leaks that causes a 
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Chapter 40 to start being considered.  Now, I have no idea as I stand here 

today whether or not the same HOA board that negotiated the settlement with 

Mr. Brown, he was the attorney back then in 2011, and Feinberg, Grant.  I 

don’t know if that’s the same board.  For all I know they’re completely different 

people.  I’m not sure why he spent so much time talking about what they know 

because what they know really is immaterial to whether or not these defects 

are valid, but there has been some investigation and Omar did go look at 

multiple units.  Why?  Because we see this issue cropping up more and more.   

  Now, with regards to the – to the mechanical room.  Randy Kent 

who – I’m sorry, but you know him.  You probably have spent more time with 

him than you ever cared to as an expert.  He wrote a report and his report is 

very detailed, it includes photographs, it includes verbal descriptions of the 

defects.  That’s a report that I would put him on the stand at trial in front a jury 

and cross exam – or direct examination, direct exam him based upon that 

report.  It’s a trial report; it is far more than what you would normally get in 

Chapter 40.  In other words, if that report is not good enough to try him on, I 

mean – and I think it is, it certainly ought to be good enough to do a Chapter 

40 on it.  I mean, what kind of a world do we live in now where my expert has 

to produce a better report for Chapter 40 than the one he uses at the time of 

trial.  That makes no sense to me, Your Honor, that’s turning the statute on its 

head.  So, Randy Kent’s trial report meaning – and that’s a report I would use 

at the time of trial, it should be sufficient for Chapter 40.  And that’s why each 

of the same hackneyed recycled arguments that the builder makes about the 

insufficiency of the description – they also make it for the mechanical room – 

the mechanical issues and it shows you they’re just – they’re just regurgitating 
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arguments.  I’m actually analyzing that specific report and detailing what they 

think is wrong.  They do bring up that one particular defect which is 

represented in two pictures that they have to – they couldn’t really figure out 

what  those two pictures were trying to show or they had to actually physically 

see the valves before they can make a determination.  Your Honor, that’s not 

what Chapter 40 requires.  

 Just to bring us back to reality.  Chapter 40 was instituted in 1995 

as a self-help statute so that homeowners could get their defects fixed by the 

builders, then in 2003 this election to repair came along; they call it a right to 

repair, I call it a right to be repaired.  And it’s just proven – it has morphed into 

something it was never intended to be.  Chapter 40 has become weaponized so 

that the builders, the subcontractors can use it as a killing field to force 

homeowner claims to have to run through it.  And if they survive, if they make 

it to the other side of that killing field well then yes, they can graduate to 

wonderful litigation.  It was never intended to be that way; it was never 

intended to be a windowing process that sifts out claims on technicalities or 

weakness or anything, it was supposed to be a process why which 

homeowners should get their homes fixed.  And that’s the purpose of Chapter 

40 and it remains the purpose of Chapter 40 despite AB125.   

  And so when you come across a defect like the sewer pipe – and, 

you know, I listened to counsel make a number of – a lengthy argument about 

how somehow the builder has a right to see the sewer pipe before it was 

repaired, to watch the repair before it’s repaired, to watch the repair and to 

force my client to keep that broken sewer pipe.  On the off chance that 

someday my client decides to bring a Chapter 40 against him, that’s – that’s 
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horse pucky, Your Honor. that’s not the way the statute is written. 

THE COURT:  Well, can I – ask you this?  Under 40.670 it does say – I 

mean, it talks about what happens whenever there’s an eminent threat.  And I 

will be honest with you; I think the thing that bothers me about that statute is 

what is – I think an eminent threat is suddenly, you know, let’s say you got 

water gushing through the house, well, you don’t have time to write a 40.645 

notice but I would think even a phone call to the builder saying, hey, we got 

this problem, we’re gonna Band-Aid it up to, you know, keep it from going all 

over the house and then once we get it stopped maybe turn the water off at 

the, you know, the house, you know, thing so that we could get the water out 

of the house, then come right away to look at this thing because it needs to be 

repaired and if they say, no, sorry, we’re not coming, we don’t have time then 

you have to get it repaired.  But I am troubled by the – it sounds like you have 

to get a 645 notice out before you can even make a claim for eminent harm but 

– 

         MR. SALZANO:  Let’s read the first sentence, Your Honor. 

         THE COURT:  Okay. 

         MR. SALZANO:  It says:  “A contractor, subcontractor who receives 

written notice of a construction defect resulting – 

         THE COURT:  Right. 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- work performed by the contractor – 

         THE COURT:  Right. 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- that creates a supplier – which creates an eminent 

threat to the health or safety of the inhabitants of the residence shall take 

reasonable steps to cure it.”  That means that any time a problem happens at a 

0483AA0483



home you have to make a – essentially a guess that an expert would make or a 

– or an expert determination that this defect or this threat was caused by the 

contractor’s work that is beyond the ability of most homeowners and even 

most HOA boards.  To make a determination at the time that that pipe is 

spewing raw sewage into the basement of your building are you gonna sit there 

and calculate was this a constructional defect or was this some other cause?  

Did we put something on the pipe to cause it to break or is – did this arise from 

some previous repair that we did?  The statute, if you interpret it that any time 

a life safety issue arises that a decision has to be made whether or not it was 

caused by the contractor versus some other cause.  Before you repair the life 

safety issue is gonna cause a lot of people to get sued because if they take that 

time to try and figure it out bad stuff is gonna happen.  Because while we’re 

thinking or trying to call people to come in and assess and write reports and 

stuff there’s raw sewage filling our basement.  In reality most people mitigate 

automatically, they shut the water off at the street, they call somebody in.  

Where it’s sewer you can’t shut it off so you – you have to fix it immediately.  

You have to call somebody in to essentially stop, dig it up and replace it.  And 

you have to do it quickly because it’s raw sewage, it has people’s poop on it.   

  So, I hate to be so graphic, Your Honor, but this to me is – 

         THE COURT:  It’s a crappy problem.  I think we – 

         MR. SALZANO:  Yes. 

         THE COURT:  -- all could stipulate about that, right? 

         MR. SALZANO:  And to be perfectly honest, I thought it was a crappy 

argument but – I apologize, Peter, that was too much. 

         THE COURT:  Well – but the thing is though I am concerned about was it 
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so eminent of a problem?  I’m gathering from Mr. Brown’s argument that this 

wasn’t that eminent and – I mean, we didn’t have raw sewage going down in 

the basement -- 

MR. SALZANO:  No – 

THE COURT:  -- right?  

         MR. SALZANO:  -- I believe we did.  And the HOA, you have to 

understand they have a – they have a – they have a duty to their tenants, a 

fiduciary duty, a responsibility to make sure they do for their tenants, you 

know, to act in their best interest.  And I think they made a determination that 

it needed to be fixed – fixed immediately.  I resist however, Your Honor, the 

thought that under 670 there remains on homeowners a responsibility where 

something could in some future or fashion impact the livability of the home, 

that they must notify the builder before they make a repair.   

         THE COURT:  But the statute unfortunately says that doesn’t it? 

         MR. SALZANO:  And see, I’m not sure that it does, Your Honor, because 

– you’re right.  And Francis just reminded me that the HOA did – the board 

actually called the fire department when it happened, it was over the Christmas 

holiday.  And when they called the fire department the fire department came 

out and it was something that needed to be fixed very quickly --  

         THE COURT:  Okay. 

         MR. SALZANO:   -- so – I’m troubled by this idea that if I know there’s a 

roof leak on my house that I have to call the builder.  My house is three years 

old and I gotta call KB.  Hey, KB, come out because I’m hiring a guy who is 

gonna go up there for a hundred-fifty bucks and fix the flashing on the edge of 

the home that was damaged for whatever reason.  But because at some future 
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point I may do a Chapter 40 notice on you and because this could cause mold 

at some point which could affect health and could affect me severely I’m 

inviting you to my house.  I mean -- 

THE COURT:  But unfortunately that – 

MR. SALZANO:  -- it violates – it violates common sense to have that 

interpretation of the law.  I understand what the – what it says – 

         THE COURT:  Right. 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- and I think that it’s very convenient for them to say 

this is what should have been done, but in reality you don’t fix those types of 

things and expect that you’re gonna call the builder because you think on the 

top of the your mind this may ripen into litigation in three years so therefore I 

have to call the builder.  It’s just – it boggles common sense to think that that’s 

– that would be people’s thinking.  And so I think that that interpretation of 

Chapter 40 – or that interpretation of the specific statute it – it shouldn’t be the 

interpretation that this Court places on it.  I’ll leave it at that. 

         THE COURT:  Okay.   

         MR. SALZANO:  Your Honor, I just want to – just -- before I sum up, 

rectify a couple of things that I heard from counsel for the builder.  I don’t know 

whether or not since it’s the board that’s making the determination now that 

settled the claim then, I don’t know if there’s been board turnover.  I wouldn’t 

be surprised if it’s a completely different board.  And so I don’t know how Mr. 

Brown thinks that these new people – if there are new people, would know, 

geez, we gotta call the – we gotta call the builder in because we’ve got a 

sewer pipe break.  Again, I don’t think that that’s a – that’s a common 

interpretation of that statute. 
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Counsel for the builder has made a big deal about the fact that 

when you have prior – prior repairs – in fact, he made it sound as if – under 

Chapter 40 if you do a repair without notifying the builder that you’ve somehow 

waived any ability to ever bring that lawsuit.  That specific argument, Your 

Honor, was brought in front of Judge Williams in the KiTech case because we 

had dozens of homeowners who had KiTech breaks and had fixed them and had 

never notified their builders and I believe it was brought in front of you by KB – 

 MR. BROWN:  Objection, Your Honor. 

 MR. SALZANO:  -- because there were – 

 MR. BROWN:  Objection.  We raised this in the opposition; there was no 

mention of it.  We addressed this, Your Honor, and there was no mention of it 

in the opposition.  These are arguments that counsel is introducing today for 

the first time.   

         THE COURT:  Okay. 

         MR. BROWN:  It’s inappropriate to reference other cases, Your Honor. 

         MR. SALZANO:  I believe he – 

         THE COURT:  I understand – 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- raised – 

         THE COURT:  -- but – 

         MR. SALZANO:  -- it in the reply and of course I don’t get a chance to – 

         THE COURT:  I’ll listen to you, Mr. Salzano. 

         MR. SALZANO:  I believe that KB raised this specific argument to you in 

your portion of the KiTech case and I believe that you rejected it then because 

there’s nothing in Chapter 40 that says that if you self-help, if you mitigate and 

fix a problem that you forever waive any right to bring a Chapter 40 notice on 
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that specific problem that has already been repaired.  And the class action 

settlement fund actually paid those people back for their repairs.  So, I don’t 

think there’s any waiver under Chapter 40 if you self-help and if you repair the 

issue yourself.   You are able to bring that claim still under Chapter 40 and I 

don’t think AB125 changed that. 

  Lastly, Your Honor, with regards to this issue that we discussed 

about if this Court were to stay.  We would ask that this Court stay the entire 

litigation and here’s why.  This litigation was not brought simply to challenge 

Chapter 40, it was brought for a number of different issues some of them 

involving contract interpretation, some of them involving indemnity and shifting 

of responsibility.  Those issues I believe should be held in abeyance if – if and – 

until that such time as the HOA has the opportunity to properly present their 

claim to this – to the builder.  Now, we believe they sued us for many grounds 

over and above simply the interpretation of Chapter 40 that this Court has a 

right to say Chapter 40 is done, let’s move on to discovery.   

  Now, next week we’re meeting with Floyd Hale, we’re gonna go 

over our CMO, we’re gonna start setting up our schedules for inspections, to 

start testing, depositions, and move this case forward.  Our request, Your 

Honor, is is that you not only deny their motion, that you declare the Chapter 

40 process has been completed under subsection 4 so that the parties can 

move on, get to the merits of the litigation and get some type of resolution on 

this claim.  Thank you. 

 MR. BROWN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Peter Brown again on behalf of 

the moving parties.  Number one, for the record my clients absolutely disagree 

with the HOA’s representation that this Court knows already that the issues 
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raised by the new Chapter 40 notice are not covered by the settlement 

agreement.  And in fact, we agree there will be motion practice eventually 

depending on how the rest of this case goes as to whether or not certain claims 

are barred by the very terms of the settlement agreement.  And so it is 

presumptuous of counsel to state to the Court that you have already 

determined and that you know already that the issues that are raised are issues 

that were not part of the defects that were released via the first settlement.  In 

fact, Your Honor, we’ll be making arguments that there are several of these 

issues that are indeed ones that were identified during the original and/or 

related to ones that were related during the original litigation which is the terms 

of the settlement agreement.  It is contemplated in the settlement that if there 

are disputes over the settlement agreement that portions of the settlement 

agreement would be disclosed but not the entire. So, that is something that I 

know because I was part of the drafting of it, counsel was not and so he’s not 

as familiar with the terms as I am.   

 You – one argument that he made as to why this Court cannot 

grant the motion is interesting because the counter to the argument because he 

relies upon that subsection 4 that the notice is not required.  Again, it’s a 

portion of the statute that he did not reference -- or the HOA did not reference 

in their opposition, it was raised for the first time today.  But, Your Honor, I 

believe the Court already hit on what is important.  Notice was already 

provided.   It would be a complete rejection if indeed counsel says that First 

Light I still applies, it would be a complete rejection of that ruling which allow 

my clients to challenge the specificity of the notice.  And as I pointed out we 

believe that the standard now is that it must be a very specific notice based 
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upon exact location, based upon specific identification of defect, damage and 

injury and not on the reasonable standard of First Light I.  But what cannot be 

provided to my client which there’s no way around this is that repairs were 

done to unit 300 in their entirety to – and as yet to be determined but we 

believe a significant portion of the mechanical piping issues and the entire 

sewer issue without my client being afforded an opportunity to inspect, to 

provide a response, to make a determination as to whether that response would 

include an election to repair.   

 And as the Court kept commenting during my colleagues’ 

representation, NRS 40.645 specifically states:  “That before a claimant 

commences an action you must give written notice.”  And that written notice 

must, according to AB125, identify in specific detail each defect, damage, 

injury to each residence, the exact location.  I don’t know how else to read 

that, Your Honor, but to read it that there was a reason why the legislature two 

years ago approved by the governor, signed into law, took out reasonable detail 

and put in new language that says specific detail and used the word “each”.  

Not specific detail of defects, damages and injuries but specific detail as to 

“each” defect, damage and injury.  To each.  Not in the blue tape example; oh, 

one unit here and a sample there, but to each residence including without 

limitation the exact location of each such defect.  

  And then Mr. Salzano said:  “You know, it should still be okay for 

him to put up that blue tape and put it here.”  And he says, “You can call that 

sampling, you can call that extrapolation.”  Again, Your Honor, I don’t know 

how else this Court can interpret what the legislature did and what the governor 

approved and signed into law when it took out specifically subparagraph three 
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of NRS 40.645(2) – or (3) which specifically took out the language that 

originally said:  “That a notice that includes an expert opinion concerning the 

cause of the constructional defects and the nature and extent of the damage or 

injury resulting from the defects which is based on a valid and reliable 

representative sample of the components of the residences or appurtenances 

may be used as notice.”  It’s out.  It was specific language that existed.  It’s 

gone and what was put in its place is a requirement that there be specific detail 

of each defect, each injury, each damage in each unit, in every exact location.   

  The notice that was provided to my clients did not give that, Your 

Honor.  We’ve identified that there were over 9,000 windows of different 

configurations.  Now, the representation, Your Honor, today is that they’re all 

the same windows.  We’ve represented to you that they’re not, Your Honor, 

but he says that none of them are of the sill plate.  It doesn’t take away, Your 

Honor, from the alleged corrosion damage, it doesn’t take away from what 

we’ve now heard is apparently Mr. Hindiyeh wants to claim that the corrosion 

damage causes structural compromise of the building.  That’s brand new.  

That’s not in the notice, that’s in Mr. Hindiyeh’s affidavit.  But that is specific 

damage that that statute says must be identified in each residence, every 

location.  That’s what the statute says.  They may not like it.  They fought it, 

the Plaintiff’s bar fought desperately against that change and they lost.  This is 

the law.   

  You cannot – Mr. Salzano said – using the blue tape example:  

“You localize where it is and then it’s on my client to say, oh, well, they 

localized that.  We can figure out where else it is.”  You cannot localize 

corrosion, you cannot localize structural issues, you cannot localize fire 
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blocking.  That’s specific.  Even if you were to look at what would not be 

allowable extrapolation summary affidavit from Mr. Hindiyeh that is not 

pursuant to the statute.  Mr. Hindiyeh can’t even give you that.  He just says, 

well, I looked at fifteen units.  I think you were told there were over 600 units 

between the two towers.  Fifteen units?  That’s – even under the old Chapter 

40 would that be a sufficient sampling?   

 Mr. Salzano says that the report from Mr. Kent, boy, he’s use that 

at trial.  Your Honor, the report that is provided is not from Mr. Kent, it’s from a 

Mr. Fehr.  The only thing that Mr. Kent provides is an anticipated cost associate 

with what he thinks it would cost to do the inspection that the HOA’s counsel 

says, oh, we may have to do if we have to follow the statute.  Mr. Kent did not 

provide a report, the report that’s provided in the Chapter 40 notice was from 

ATMG, Advanced Technology and Marketing Group and the author of that is 

Gregory Fehr, F-e-h-r.   

  Today – I’ve learned more today about that sewer issue than I 

knew before for over now a year of litigation.  I learned today it happened on 

Christmas, I learned today that sewage was being spewed somewhere.  I 

learned today that they called up the fire department; I learned today that they 

didn’t know that they should call my client.  Today, not in the moving papers, 

but today that’s what you were told.  Notes were being given, oh, this is more 

information we now know.  Nowhere despite two letters asking give me 

something as to the sewer claim.  They didn’t respond.  Give me something as 

to what – what you did with those fittings and component parts and 

mechanical piping.  What you did with them.  No response whatsoever.  And 

you didn’t hear anything today did you?  Those probably are long gone because 
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there’s never been a representation that anything that was removed and 

replaced is anywhere to be found. 

 Your Honor, Mr. Salzano asked you at the end to completely 

disregard everything my client says – has asked for.  That we’re gonna go in 

front of the special master next week and he’s gonna set this case on course.  

Let’s let Special Master Hale set everything for it, we don’t need to go back to 

the Chapter 40 process, we just do depositions and inspections and just move 

on so we can get to the money.  That’s what they want. Your Honor, before 

they get to ask for money they’ve got to give my client a proper notice.  It 

would be a complete disregard of AB125 if this Court were to agree with Mr. 

Salzano’s position that (1) my clients’ declaratory relief action somehow 

completely dismisses the Chapter 40 issues and that regardless of whether 

there are huge problems with the Chapter 40 notice my client cannot ever 

challenge that.  My client has challenged it, challenged it in the Chapter 40 

response, challenged it at – during the mediation, challenged it in two letters to 

them and challenged it appropriately in the declaratory relief action.   

  Now, finally with regard to whether or not if this Court makes the 

determination to stay to see if they can fix their Chapter 40 problems, the 

notice problems, the statute specifically talks about if the action is filed without 

the Chapter 40 notice being properly done then the Court has two options.  It 

can stay that -- it can dismiss without prejudice that action or it can stay that 

action.  It doesn’t say anything about my clients’ claims.  And, Your Honor, my 

client should not be precluded from going forward on discovery on certain 

things like the spoliation of evidence.  I still after all this time, Your Honor -- and 

this Court has no additional information as to whether or not the mechanical 
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pipe components still are anywhere to be found so that my client could possibly 

do a test on them to see if what is alleged is true, to see whether or not my 

client can confirm the components parts.  Maybe my client wants to make a 

claim against a third party manufacturer but my client has no information upon 

which to base that because my client does not have the component parts.  

There are aspects of my clients’ declaratory relief that should still be allowed to 

go forward, Your Honor, because the statute talks about an improperly filed 

action by a claimant.  My client is not the claimant; my client is seeking its own 

relief in its declaratory relief action and did so appropriately.  And, Your Honor, 

we were here months ago in which they did a full blown challenge to my 

clients’ declaratory relief action and you denied their motion to dismiss on every 

single ground and yet they’re dredging that up again today.   You already ruled 

that my clients’ deck relief action was appropriate and could move forward.   

  This Court should grant the motion for summary judgment on the 

Third Cause of Action as to all claims related to unit 300, as to any aspect of 

mechanical piping claims that have been removed and replaced without notice 

being given to my client and the opportunity to repair prior to being done, and 

the sewer claim because no notice was given to my client.  My client can never 

be provided that right to repair again it’s done, it’s gone, and AB125 required 

that.  With regard to the overall claim this Court should grant the motion and 

send the HOA back to the drawing board to see if it can comply with AB125 

which requires that specificity.  And we have with – with our own specificity 

shown what is wrong in each and every instance with the Chapter 40 notice 

that we received.  Thank you, Your Honor. 

         THE COURT:  Counsel, I would like to write on this one.   And I know 
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that sometimes I take a while to do them and it’s not because I’m not working.  

But the good news is, even though I’m right in the middle of a murder trial, I 

have got just a few left with respect to the Copper Sands case and I frankly am 

kind of anxious to get that one off of the drawing board.  And I am – I’ve 

gotten one of them out and I got three more to do, but the good news is I don’t 

think that they’re gonna take me that long to do.  This would be next in line 

after that. 

 MR. BROWN:  Your Honor, is – could you give us any type of – and I 

apologize for this.  Could you give us any type of estimate?  What I’m getting 

at is that there are so many issues that are raised today including requests by 

counsel as to what the HOA thinks you should do with regard to staying the 

case and what aspect of the case.  If we had some general idea my 

recommendation would be to inform the special master that until we get the 

order from the Court it would be inappropriate for the Court to set a discovery 

schedule on this case until we get this Court’s ruling. 

         THE COURT:  I’m pretty confident I can get it to you within the three or 

four weeks.  My murder trial goes into next week and then I’m going to the 

state bar for a couple of day, but I am here after that so I should be able – I 

mean, those other things won’t take me that long to do. 

         MR. BROWN:  So, you believe within three to four weeks? 

         THE COURT:  Yes.   

         MR. BROWN:  Your Honor – 

         THE COURT:  I really do. 

         MR. BROWN:  -- my clients would request that the Court recommend that 

the special master hold off on setting any discovery dates until the ruling on 
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this particular motion.  

MR. LYNCH:  That’s no problem, Your Honor.  We’ll go ahead and write 

Floyd today and put it off until you come back with your decision. 

THE COURT:  Well, it’ll save you guys all some money.  I mean, I know 

that sometimes I take long on these and it’s just it takes me a while to write 

them anyway.  But I’d just like to write on this one.  I’m interested. 

MR. SALZANO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

MR. BROWN:  Thank you so much, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. BROWN:  Thank you for your time. 

*  *  *  *  * 

*  *  *  *  * 

         THE COURT:  You bet. 

[Proceedings concluded at 12:12:57 p.m.] 

*  *  *  *  *  
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COME NOW Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants Laurent Hallier, Panorama Towers I, LLC,  

Panorama Towers I Mezz, LLC and M.J. Dean Construction, Inc. (hereinafter collectively referred 

to as “Builders”), by and through their attorneys of record, Peter C. Brown, Esq. and Jeffrey W. 

Saab, Esq. of the law firm of Bremer Whyte Brown & O’Meara LLP, and hereby submits this  

Opposition to Defendant/Counter-Claimant Panorama Tower Condominium Unit Owners’ 

Association’s (hereinafter “ Association”)  Motion for Clarification of this Court’s September 15, 

2017 Order.  

This Opposition is made and based on the pleadings and papers on file herein, the following 

Memorandum of Points and Authorities in support thereof, and any and all evidence and/or 

testimony accepted by this Honorable Court at the time of the hearing on the underlying Motion. 

Dated:  October 27, 2017 BREMER WHYTE BROWN & O’MEARA LLP 
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Peter C. Brown, Esq. 
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I.  

FACTUAL SUMMARY 

 This matter arises from allegations of  construction defects at two towers in the Panorama 

Towers Condominiums project, located at 4525 Dean Martin Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada (“Tower 

I”) and 4575 Dean Martin Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada (“Tower II”) (hereinafter together referred to 

as “the Project”).  Tower I consists of 33 floors, 308 units, 10 townhomes, 6 lofts, retail space, 

pool, and a 5-level parking garage.  Tower II consists of 34 floors, 308 units, 10 townhomes, 6 

lofts, retail space, pool, and 5-level parking garage.  Plaintiffs, Laurent Hallier and Panorama 

Towers I, LLC (hereinafter together referred to as “Developer”), were the owner and developer 

entities for the Project, and Plaintiff M.J. Dean Construction, Inc. (“M.J. Dean”) was the Project’s 

general contractor.  Laurent Hallier, Panorama Towers I, LLC and M.J. Dean shall hereinafter be 

collectively referred to as (“the Builders).” 

 The Builders filed their Complaint for declaratory relief and affirmative damages on 

September 28, 2016 asserting claims for: (i) Declaratory Relief - Application of AB 125; (ii) 

Declaratory Relief - Claim Preclusion; (iii) Failure to Comply with NRS 40.600 et seq., (iv) 

Spoliation of Evidence; (v) Breach of Contract; (vi) Declaratory Relief - Duty to Defend; and (vii) 

Declaratory Relief - Duty to Indemnify.  On March 1, 2017, Defendant/Counter-Claimant 

Panorama Tower Condominium Unit Owners’ Association (“Association”) filed its Answer and 

Counter-Claim asserting claims for (i) Breach of NRS 116.4113 and 116.4114 Express and Implied 

Warranties, Habitability, Fitness, Quality and Workmanship; (ii) Negligence and Negligence per 

se; (iii) Products Liability; (iv) Breach of Contract; (v) Intentional/Negligent Non-Disclosure; and 

(vi) Breach of the Duty of Good Faith and Fair Dealing; Violation of NRS 116.1113. 

 On March 20, 2017, the Builders filed a Motion for Summary Judgment as to the 

Association’s Counter-Claim and a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment as to the Builder’s 

Third-Claim for Relief. The Association filed its Opposition on April 26, 2017 and the Builders 

filed its Reply Brief on May 10, 2017.  

 In consideration of the above, and following oral argument on June 20, 2017, this Court 

issued its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (“Order”) on September 15, 2017.  While the 
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Order appears perfectly clear on its face to the Builders, the Association now seeks clarification as 

to this Court’s ruling on two issues:  (1) sewer problems; and (2) fire blocking.  

 A. Sewer Problems  

 Initially, the Association seeks clarification as to whether its claim for sewer problems was 

dismissed via this Court’s Order.  However, the Association answers is own question via its Motion 

for Clarification. More specifically, the Association concedes that “it cannot ever satisfy the 

inspection and repair requirement” to which the Builders are unequivocally entitled to by statute. 

See Assn Mtn. P 6; 22-23.  Consequently, since this Court has already determined the Association’s 

Chapter 40 Notice was deficient, and because the Association concedes that it will never be able to 

cure the Notice deficiency, the Association’s alleged sewer claims cannot be resurrected and there 

can be no other reading of this Court’s Order but that they are dismissed with prejudice.  

 B. Fire Blocking 

 The Association seeks “clarity” as to whether it is required to perform pre-litigation 

destructive testing at each and every location, or potential location, where fire blocking may have 

been omitted.  In reality, this is not an effort at clarification, but rather a Motion for 

Reconsideration.  This Court already rejected the Association’s arguments on this issue, confirming 

the statutory requirement of the identification of each defect, damage and injury to each residence.  

The Order expressly stated that extrapolation was no longer allowed. See Order P. 15; 15-17.   

 The Association contends the available plans are not specific enough to allow the 

Association’s experts to identify each and every location.  Interestingly, the plans were not a 

problem, and indeed the Association’s expert relied on them, when the Association identified this 

particular issue in the Chapter 40 Notice: 

Fire Blocking:  The plans call for fire blocking insulation, as 
required by the building code, in the ledger shelf cavities and steel 
stud framing cavities at the exterior wall locations between 
residential floors in the two tower structures.  The purpose of this 
insulation is to deter the spread of fire from one tower unit to the unit 
above or below.  However, the insulation was not installed as 
required by the plans and the building code.   
 
This installation deficiency exists in all (100%) of the residential 
tower units, in which insulation was omitted either from the ledger 
shelf cavity, from the steel stud framing cavity, or from both.   
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This deficiency presents an unreasonable risk of injury to a person or 
property resulting from the spread of fire.  

 

Furthermore, the Association fails to acknowledge in its Request for Clarification that its 

expert, Omar Hindeyah of CMA, inspected fifteen (15) units and that he provided an affidavit in 

support of the Association’s Opposition to the Builders’ Motion for Summary Judgment.  In stark 

contrast to the alleged 100% incident rate in the Chapter 40 Notice, by Mr. Hindeyah’s own 

admission, the alleged fire blocking issue was not found in 100% of the inspected areas.
1
   

Regardless of the actual alleged incident rate, the original Chapter 40 Notice also noted that the fire 

blocking was allegedly missing “from the ledger shelf cavity, from the steel stud framing cavity, or 

from both.”  The Notice itself acknowledges that in some areas the fire blocking was not missing.   

As noted in the Builders’ Motion for Summary Judgment and Reply Brief in support of same, the 

original Chapter 40 Notice utterly failed to comply with NRS 40.645(2)(b), and this Court agreed 

with the Builders.   

         The Association’s Chapter 40 Notice did not identify in specific detail the alleged defect, 

damage and injury to each residence or appurtenance that is the subject of the Association’s claim, 

including, without limitation the exact location of each such defect, damage and injury.  

Somehow Mr. Hindeyah was able to perform an inspection of fifteen (15) units where he identified 

an alleged fire blocking issue in some but not all of the units, and yet the Association now seeks 

clarification from this Court as to whether Mr. Hindeyah must similarly inspect the remaining six 

hundred and eleven (611) units to confirm whether the fire blocking issue exists for those units.  

There is nothing to clarify.  This Court made its ruling that the Association’s Chapter 40 Notice 

failed to comply with NRS 40.645(2)(b).   

The comment by the Association in the Motion for Clarification about plans is irrelevant 

since Mr. Hindeyah never opined that the fire blocking issue pertained to every unit.  

Consequently, the Association must identify in specific detail the alleged defect, damage and injury 

                                                 
1
 Affidavit of Omar Hindiyeh, ¶ 6(a) and (b), attached as Exhibit “A” to the Association’s 

Opposition.  
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to each residence or appurtenance that is the subject of the Association’s claim, including, without 

limitation the exact location of each such defect, damage and injury.     

The Association contends that without detailed blueprints or plans, it would be required to 

conduct significant additional destructive testing.  However, in consideration of just such an 

argument, this Court, in its Order made clear that “extrapolation was no longer an acceptable 

practice”. Id.  Unlike the Association’s claim for sewer problems where it concedes it cannot ever 

cure the deficient Chapter 40 Notice, the Association makes no such concession here.  

Consequently, while the Court gave the Association a generous six month opportunity to correct 

the errors of its original Chapter 40 Notice, the Association apparently has no appetite to do so.  

Instead, the Association obviously wants this Court to sanction extrapolation based on a less than 

100% alleged existence of fire blocking issues in fifteen (15) units (none of this information, by the 

way, has ever been provided to the Builders since it was not in the actual Chapter 40 Notice).  If 

this Court were to agree with the Association’s Motion for Clarification (or, in actuality, agree with 

the Association’s thinly veiled Motion for Reconsideration), the requirement of specific 

identification would improperly fall on the shoulders of the Builders.  That is certainly not what the 

Nevada Legislature intended when AB 125 was enacted.      

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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         III. 

CONCLUSION 

 For the reasons stated above, Builders requests that the Court’s September 15, 2017 Order 

stand.   

Dated:  October 27, 2017 BREMER WHYTE BROWN & O’MEARA LLP 

   
 By:        

Peter C. Brown, Esq. 

Nevada State Bar No. 5887 

Jeffrey W. Saab, Esq. 

Nevada State Bar No. 11261 

Attorneys for Plaintiffs/Counter-Defendants, 

LAURENT HALLIER; PANORAMA 

TOWERS I, LLC; PANORAMA TOWERS I 

MEZZ, LLC; and M.J. DEAN 

CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 27th day of October2017, I served a true and correct 

copy of the foregoing by electronically serving all parties via the Court’s Electronic Filing System.  

 

       
     _________________________________  

     Amree Stellabotte, an Employee of 

     BREMER WHYTE BROWN & O’MEARA, LLP  
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LAURENT HALLIER, 
 
                              Plaintiff, 
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PANORAMA TOWERS CONDOMINIUM 
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) 
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) 
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RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE 
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MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION OF THIS COURT’S 9-15-17 ORDER 
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         JEFFREY SAAB, ESQ. 
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TUESDAY NOVEMBER 21, 2017 AT 12:06:30 A.M. 

 

         THE COURT:  Okay.  And that gets us to – well, maybe.  Okay.  Hallier versus 

Panorama Towers and that is case number A-16-744146-D.  Would you announce 

your appearances for the record, please? 

 MR. BROWN:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Peter Brown on behalf of the 

Plaintiff builders. 

 MR. SAAB:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Jeff Saab co-counsel with Mr. 

Brown. 

 MR. SALZANO:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Sergio Salzano and Charles – 

 MR. HOPPER:  Dee Hopper. 

 MR. SALZANO: -- Dee Hopper on behalf of the Association. 

 THE COURT:  Okay.  And, counsel, this is your Motion for Clarification of my 

September 15th order which as you know I – let’s see, it – I’m just counting the 

pages.  It is 20 pages. 

 MR. SALZANO:  Yes, Your Honor. 

 THE COURT:  Okay. 

 MR. SALZANO:  Let me say at the outset you should be commended that you 

are as specific and detailed as you are in your orders.  Leave it to counsel to find 

small issues that we feel need to be addressed in a 20 paged order.  And so I will try 

to be brief, Your Honor.   

  As you know, the builders brought a Motion for Summary Judgment, we 

opposed it.  And when they brought their Motion for Summary Judgment – and it 

had to do with the sufficiency of the Chapter 40 Notice that was issued in this case, 

they question the sufficiency of four different – the four different defect issues; the 

AA0562



 

Page - 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

mechanical room, sewer piping, the windows and the fire blocking.  And in addition 

they also propose to this Court that the interpretation of AB125, the new revisions to 

Chapter 40, that those revisions needed to be interpreted very strictly and very 

literally.  We of course in opposition argued that AB125 changes to Chapter 40 

could be interpreted according to the reasonableness standard or substantial client 

standard.   

  This Court in your order you rejected our approach, adopted the 

Builder’s approach and you stated – if I could just read.  This is from page 12 of your 

order. 

 THE COURT:  Okay.  Let me get there. 

 MR. SALZANO:  It’s lines 12 to 14.   

 THE COURT:  Okay.  

 MR. SALZANO:  12 to 13 [indecipherable]. 

 THE COURT:  Okay. 

 MR. SALZANO:  “NRS 40.645 now requires not just reasonable but specific 

detail in each defect, damage and injury.”  And then if you skip to page 15 also lines 

12 and 13.  You stated:  “Clearly the legislature intended the defect and its exact 

location to be specifically identified to allow the contractor to make a meaningful 

investigation.”  You went a step further and also agreed with the builder’s position 

that under Chapter 40 extrapolation is no longer a viable method by which you can 

comply with the requirements of the statute.  In essence you can’t use extrapolation 

in the notices anymore as I think the way it was discussed in the hearing.   

  Also from the order page 15 starting on line 12 – I may have that line 

incorrect.  It says:  “If the 2015 Nevada legislature intended that the constructional 

defects found in a typical unit be extrapolated as existing in other residences they 
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would have said so, instead by deleting such provisions from the pre 2015 NRS 

40.645 the lawmakers demonstrated their intent extrapolation was no longer an 

acceptable practice.”  Now we understand your ruling, we’re not questioning it, we’re 

not asking for it to be reconsidered or be heard.  We would like clarification however, 

Your Honor, on a couple of the defect areas where you went from that approach to 

Chapter 40 to the conclusions of law that you then rendered on the four issue areas. 

And I would just mention as a matter of completeness you did give us the six month 

stay to attempt compliance with the guidance that you gave us in your conclusions 

of law.   

  As to the window issue, you basically said that we did not identify the 

locations with – with enough specificity and therefore it did not satisfy the 

requirements of a Chapter 40 Notice.  As to the fire blocking issue, the same thing, 

you said:  “You’re not giving us the exact location so therefore it doesn’t satisfy 

AB125 and Chapter 40 as a whole.”  On the mechanical room issue that’s the odd 

one that kind of got dismissed because the statute of limitations and we’ll set that 

one aside.  And then on the sewer pipe issue we pointed out that because no 

opportunity to inspect the condition or to offer the repair was given to the builder 

prior to the Association doing its own repair that therefore we couldn’t – or we didn’t 

comply with Chapter 40 that there must be an inspection and/or repair.  And in 

addition, there wasn’t a specific description of the nature of the defect and the 

damage it caused.  So, that’s really what happened with the order. 

  The reason why we brought a Motion for Clarification is because on two 

of these issues we feel like we don’t really have enough guidance to move forward.  

Let me explain.  Setting aside the mechanical room because that was dismissed on 

the statute of limitations, we understand, we accept and setting aside the window 
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issue which was just a locations matter, if we go to the sewer pipe issue this Court 

told us in the order that we cannot satisfy Chapter 40 because we didn’t offer an 

opportunity to inspect and repair.  Let me read from page 16 of the order starting at 

line 18.  “The contractor must be allowed a reasonable opportunity either to repair 

the defect or cause the deficiency to be repaired if an election to repair is made 

pursuant to NRS 40.6472.  In this case the contractors were not accorded its right to 

inspect or repair the defects in the mechanical room and sewer system as the 

deficiencies were removed and replaced prior to the March 26, 2016 inspection.  

This Court understands to this day the contractors had not been provided access to 

the defective piping, fittings and other materials.  Given these facts this Court finds 

the contractor’s arguments the Association did not comply with NRS Chapter 40 – 

Chapter 40’s pre-litigation requirements” [indecipherable]. 

  Now, the practical effect of that is that to comply with Chapter 40 the 

Association is somehow is going to have to either invent or build a time machine to 

go back in time to invite the builder to see the pipe in the condition, in its pre repair 

nature.  Now, the Association has looked for the pipe, we believe the piping as it 

was a sewer pipe was discarded after the repair was completed and so we can’t 

recreate the unrepaired condition.  Now, we realize that at some future point we 

might have problems with proof if you were to let this claim go forward.  If you would 

have let it go forward we would have proof problems.  We understand that, but at 

this juncture right now in Chapter 40 your language here seems to say unless you 

can somehow go back in time and present this in its pre repaired condition you can 

never satisfy Chapter 40.  And if that’s the case, Your Honor – and I would point out 

that in their opposition the builder seems to agree with that, the builder seems to 

say, yeah, what she really did was she dismissed the claim.   
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  Now I’ve been practicing law for twenty years, I’ve never walked into a 

court and said, Your Honor, you need to dismiss my claim.  I’ve never had to do that 

before.  And, you know, I’m not gonna do it today, I am however going to ask that 

this Court clarify whether or not that conclusion follows naturally from the language 

that I cited here in the order because we just can’t go back and comply because we 

can’t go back in time and present an unrepaired condition and an opportunity to 

repair to the builder.  You can’t do it.  So, if that means that dismissal is the only 

logical conclusion we would just ask that the Court clarify that. 

  With regards to the fire blocking issue.  Now as to the window and the 

fire blocking issue, it seems like the Court’s primary difficulty with the Chapter 40 

Notice was that it did not identify the locations of those defects.  And if you 

remember in oral argument I presented the Court with this idea I’ve had in my head 

for many years about blue taping where you take the little piece of blue tape when 

you go through – you buy a new home and you put the blue tape on all the problem 

areas and I try to be real cute about it, I think the Court understood.  Really what it 

means is you’re identifying the specific locations of every problem that you see or 

that you know about.  And the builder in their Motion for Summary Judgment stated 

that AB125 requires us to identify, blue tape every single location in the home.  We 

resisted that but it seems like the Court has accepted the builder’s interpretation of 

AB125.  And we – that’s fine, we’re not asking the Court to reconsider it.  We are 

however asking the Court to clarify one portion of that decision.   

  If I can read also from your order page 15, starting at line 17.  Let me 

make sure that I start in the right place.  “Second.  Requiring each defect to damage 

and injury to each residence to be specifically identified does not necessarily lead 

absurd results; incurrence of prohibited costs for required destructive testing.  Such 
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is especially true when one claims that deficiency is in the design of the windows 

and their assemblies as the Association does here.  For example, if there’s a defect 

in the unit’s design the Association or other claimant can identify the exact location 

by use of the building blueprints or plans.”  Now I realize that section was given in 

the window portion of your order.   

  And the – as to the windows, Your Honor, the Association believes that 

we can prove and identify the exact location of each of the window defects by use of 

the plans.  And we discussed it in hearing and you gave us guidance on that issue in 

your order because we believe the plans will show that window defects exist at 

every window and it’s a design defect, it’s not a workmanship issue.  On the other 

side of the coin with regards to the fire blocking issue, we went back to the plans 

and the plans demonstrate that the fire blocking should have been installed in each 

of the location where Mr. Hindeyah found it missing.  And Mr. Hindeyah was an 

expert witness; he’s doing work on behalf of the Association and he had an occasion 

to open up the walls in a number of units and found that this particular fire blocking 

which is intended to prevent fire from spreading from lower floor to a higher floor 

was missing in seventy-six percent of the locations.  That’s not seventy-six percent 

of the units as the builder suggests, it’s seventy-six percent of the locations where it 

was supposed to be meaning it’s in some places but it’s missing for the most.  So, 

as to the fire blocking issue, Your Honor, we cannot use the plans, we can’t rely 

upon the plans to prove the defects which means we’re gonna have to go and blue 

tape or find that specific defect in every location throughout the 600 units in the 

project.   

  Now, we attached a affidavit from Mr. Hindeyah explaining that that 

type of investigation may cost up to $8 million to accomplish.  Now his affidavit that 
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we attached to our opposition to the Motion for Summary Judgment, that affidavit 

applied both to the fire blocking issue and the window issue.  If we only have to do 

the fire blocking issue obviously there would be some cost savings but it’s not gonna 

be even fifty percent because we still have to go into every single unit, staff it, tape 

it, cut it, open it up, show everybody, etcetera, etcetera.  So, we’re looking at 

significant costs perhaps 4 to $5 million to investigate the fire blocking issue in all 

600 units.  We’re seeking clarification, Your Honor, to determine whether or not – let 

me back up.  When you gave us that clarification as to the window issue saying that 

we could reply upon the plans there was no hint as to what could be done with the 

fire blocking issue if it couldn’t be demonstrated by the plans.  And the problem that 

we have and reason why we’re seeking clarification is because it’s raised as a very 

significant due process issue.  If our client can’t walk into court to present their 

complaint to a court of law they’re being denied due process rights.  If the filing fee, 

if the entry fee to the courthouse is 4 to $5 million then that’s a due process 

problem.   

  So, we don’t know if this Court has a simple way of clarifying this issue, 

if it’s gonna require additional briefing, if it’s gonna require an evidentiary hearing, I 

don’t know.  Or this – this Court could just say, yes, Mr. Salzano, I meant every 

exact location and it’s up to you to determine what the cost is and how you’re gonna 

accomplish that.  But whatever the Court’s answer is we’d just like that clarification 

so that we can move forward because our time is running and the clock is running 

and it’s a lot of work.  I mean, as it sits right now we would have to do I believe 23 to 

24 units every single week to meet the six month deadline and that’s if we started 

this week.  That’s why we’re seeking clarification, Your Honor. Thank you. 

 MR. BROWN:  Good early afternoon, Your Honor.  Peter Brown on behalf of 
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the Plaintiff Builders.   

  Counsel said that he would need a time machine and I thought that was 

ironic because I was thinking about myself this morning.  But what this reminded me 

of is when I was a freshman in high school I was told the first week of high school 

that a particular person, I’m not gonna say her name.  I was told by my friends this 

particular person likes me.  Well, I said, oh well, I don’t know this person, this person 

went to a different high school – or a different grade school so I’m gonna go see that 

person.  Well, during my freshman year for whatever reason I wasn’t interested.  Go 

to sophomore year.  Sophomore year I see this same person over the summer, this 

person changed and all of the sudden I thought to myself, oh, well, this person, I 

started talking to her and she’s in a couple of my classes and she liked me last year, 

well, I like her this year and so I just figured that I could do the same thing that I did 

in the first year.  I can just be Peter Brown and she liked Peter Brown when I was a 

freshman so she should like Peter Brown when I’m a sophomore.  Well, guess 

what?  She didn’t like Peter Brown as a sophomore.  So, I decided to myself, well, I 

can just keep doing what I’ve always done because that was sufficient and that’s 

what worked for me before or I could change, I could look at the changed 

circumstances and see what is gonna be required of me to try to make this particular 

person like me.  

  Your Honor, I hate to swim, hate it.  I joined a swim team because my 

sister was part of a swim team and this particular person was part of a swim team 

and I joined that swim team because I decided that’s one way to spend more time 

with this person, maybe this person is going to end up seeing that I’ve changed.  I 

could have asked this person how do I change?  What can I do?  How can I make 

you like me?  Well, at the beginning of my sophomore year that person would have 

AA0569



 

Page - 10 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

said to me nothing, I don’t like you.  You didn’t like me last year and now all of the 

sudden you like me.  I don’t like you.  Circumstances have changed; you can’t do 

the same thing that you did before, you’re gonna have to do something different.  

But she didn’t have to tell me what to do, I had to figure it out.  I had to look at the 

changed circumstances and determine for myself how am I gonna make it work in 

this changed circumstance.   

  He talked about a time machine, made me think of a time machine 

thinking back to when I was freshman and a sophomore. What does this all have to 

do with what we’re talking about here today?  What are they really asking you to do?  

They can say that they’re not asking you to reconsider your ruling but I made notes 

here that he reargued the blue tape argument, he reargued the due process 

argument, he reargued the significant cost argument so in essence he’s asking you 

to reconsider those particular arguments. But what is he also asking you to do?  Just 

to tell him what to do.  What should the HOA do in order to satisfy the new changed 

circumstances that they find themselves in under AB125?  Your Honor, that’s not 

the Court’s role.  The Court is not here to give an advisory opinion just as back when 

I was 12 and 13 it wasn’t that person’s role to give me an advisory opinion as to how 

to make her like me.  I had to figure it out.   

  The statute has been written by the legislature.  I noted that in your 

lengthy order there’s absolutely no challenge of the findings of fact that pertain to 

NRS 40.645 and the changes to NRS 40.645 there’s no challenge to your finding of 

fact that the contractors are not provided notice of the removal or replacement of the 

alleged constructional defective windows in Unit 300 or the deficient piping in the 

mechanical room prior to the March 24, 2016 inspection.  There’s no challenge or 

ask for reconsideration as to the Court’s specific finding of fact as there was no 
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response from the Owners Association to the March 29, 2016 correspondence and 

this is regarding the sewer lines.  The contractor’s attorney followed up with another 

letter sent a month later April 29, 2016 however there was also no response to that 

April 29, 2016 letter.  There’s no challenge to that, Your Honor, no request for 

reconsideration.  There’s no challenge to or request for reconsideration of the 

conclusion of law, page 7.  “There is no question the provision of NRS 40.600 or 

40.695 were enacted by the Nevada legislature for the intent to provide contractor’s 

an opportunity to repair constructional defects and avoid litigation.”  There is no 

challenge to the conclusion of law found on page 8, the notice given pursuant to 

NRS 40.645 subsection 1 must, subsection B, identify in specific detail each defect, 

damage and injury to each residence or appurtenance that is the subject of the 

claims including without limitation the exact location of each such defect, damage 

and injury.  There is no challenge to this Court’s conclusion of law or request for 

reconsideration as to this Court’s setting forth under NRS 40.647 on the bottom of 

page 8 – or 9 and the top of page 10 that the notice – the HOA must allow the 

contractor, subcontractor, supplier or design professional a reasonable opportunity 

to repair the constructional defect or cause the defect to be repaired if an election to 

repair is made pursuant to NRS 40.6472.  There is no challenge to the conclusions 

of law that the Court set forth with regard to a defect that allegedly creates eminent 

threat to health safety.  No challenge to the Court setting forth that the notice must 

be provided regardless of whether or not it creates an eminent threat. 

  Throughout the conclusions of law there is no challenge to what this 

Court set forth both as to findings of fact as to the sewer problem – alleged sewer 

problem or to the fire blocking issue.  Counsel represented to you today, Your 

Honor, that they can’t figure it out.  They need your help in telling them how to 
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proceed with regard to these two particular issues.  Your Honor, that’s not your job, 

your job is to address motion practice like what has been done in this particular case 

where a Chapter 40 Notice was perceived as being deficient by my clients.  We 

raised that issue properly and this Court ruled in my client’s favor.  What does not 

change, Your Honor, and they’re correct, is that they cannot give a Chapter 40 

Notice ever to my clients with regard to the sewer issues, they cannot – let’s think 

back.  We’re now how many years since my client first received a Chapter 40 Notice 

with regard to the sewer issue?  Today counsel says, well, maybe we can find some 

information or maybe we’ll never be able to find that pipe, maybe we’ll never be able 

to do anything.  But, Your Honor, they want you to tell them it’s okay to move 

forward with a sewer claim.   Your Honor, that’s not your job.  We set forth – for all 

intense and purposes, if they can’t give us notice, if they have no proof that they 

kept the actual portions of the sewer pipe that they repaired, if they’ve got no 

documentation, they’ve got no record, they’ve got no photos, they’ve got nothing.  

Your Honor, they’ve got to make the decision as to whether or not they want to 

proceed with that particular issue, at their peril if they want to proceed.  It’s not for 

this Court to tell them how to proceed on that particular issue. 

  With regard to the fire blocking, we noted in our opposition that there is 

no need for clarification from this Court because Exhibit A to the opposition to our 

Motion for Summary Judgment referenced specific information as to the fire 

blocking.  And, Your Honor, what I’m referring for the record is on page 5 of our 

opposition to the Motion for Clarification.  We note:  “In stark contrast” – and this on 

page 5, line 6:  “In stark contrast to the alleged 100% incident rate in the Chapter 40 

Notice, by Mr. Hindeyah’s own admission, the alleged fire blocking issue was not 

found in 100% of the inspected areas.”  And so you have a Chapter 40 Notice where 

AA0572




